Milford Township Board of Supervisors’ Work Session Meeting Minutes
August 13, 2025 - 7:00 a.m.

Attendance: Supervisors present: John Mininger, Chair; Christian Haberle, Vice Chair; Member Charles Strunk was
absent. Staff present: Jeffrey Vey, Township Manager; Devan Ambron, Assistant Manager/Secretary/Treasurer; and Todd
Baldwin, Pennoni

Call to Order: Mr. Mininger called the meeting to order at 7:00 a.m.

Other Business:

Milford Village Section 6, Aplas/SKAOS, Wellness/Memory Care, John Fries Highway, TMP No. 23-015-110-002.
Mr. Robert Gundlach, solicitor for the applicant stated Sean Smith was in front on the Board for a Conditional Use
Application in 2019. He obtained approvals for a wellness center and memory care facility as part of the overall campus.
He then moved forward with the first facility in Maryland and realized the size of the facility here was too large to
construct and operated. The size of the facility has been scaled back. With a fully engineer plan it was discovered it is just
infeasible to construct on the property. They would like to move forward with age restricted town homes, a use permitted
by right. Mr. Gundlach stated Mr. Marty Smith of Pany & Lentz assisted with a plan layout. There will be a reuse of
building on the pervious Brown property as a medical building. This will be a much smaller scale wellness center with 8-
10 patients with the possibility to expand in the future. Mr. Gundlach said we are here today to discuss the proposed age
restricted plan layout. Mr. Marty Smith gave an overview of the plan. Mr. Marty Smith stated a few years ago the wellness
plan was approved, and the applicant purchased an additional 10-acres, formally the Brown property. Currently townhome
and patio homes are being proposed which was the originally intended use of Section 6. The wellness center will still be
maintained, just laid out in a different format. Delores Drive was shown as a drive out to Old Bethlehem Pike and was to
be a driveway with parking. In this scenario with change to a residential use the driveway would become a road. The road
will be designed to township standards with a loop road and cul-de-sac to serve the townhomes. There are 96-homes
proposed with 1* floor master bedrooms and a guest room upstairs along with the option for 2 additional bedrooms. This
will tie back to the AMU district and what counts as a bedroom. Mr. Gundlach stated there will also be a club house and
the water tower in the back left corner of the site is operated by the Water Authority. The area could be conveyed to the
Water Authority as it is not be used as part of this proposal. The roadway to the tower could be cleaned up as part of the
proposal. The potential rear entrance could be available if St. Luke’s Hospital wanted to put signage up. Mr. Marty Smith
stated they have not gotten into the details as they would like the townships thoughts prior to more detailed engineering.
Multiple stormwater facilities will be designed. Mr. Gundlach said they are in the process of updating the fiscal report and
traffic impact study if this moves forward as an alternate use for this section of the project. Mr. Vey asked how this will fit
into the overall site capacity and if it is age restricted. Mr. Marty Smith said this ties into Section 7 and there is no concern
there. Mr. Markward said two bedrooms is a unit. Mr. Gundlach said the most conservative calculations were used. Mr.
Gundlach said there will be deed restrictions to confirm the owners are 55 or older, no school age children can reside in the
home, however, there are guest bedrooms if they should come and stay. Some units will be two bedrooms, and some will
be three depending how they choose to fit out the second floor. The units will provide a 2-car garage with overflow parking
throughout the development. The center core will have walking trails and half of the units are close enough to walk to the
clubhouse with room for additional overflow parking. Mr. Smith currently he thinks the plan meets the requirements with
what is shown. Mr. Haberle asked if there are 96 units proposed. Mr. Smith replied that is the current count. Mr. Haberle
asked if the lower end of Delores Drive will be widened. Mr. Marty Smith said no, it is currently 28-feet wide and they
would propose to keep it 28-feet and it is built to township specs. Mr. Mininger asked if there were any issues with the cul-
de-sac that goes through the middle of the development. In the past, the township has always restricted cul-de-sacs. Mr.
Marty Smith noted the proposed cul-de-sac is shorter than what the requirement is so they should be okay there. Mr.
Gundlach said the parking on the left was contemplated as another trail. Mr. Mininger asked if there were any other
comments. Mr. Gundlach said if this moves forward the calculations will be added on the plan, the traffic assessment will
be updated, the details on the road layout will be included and they will supply data renderings. The use fits well. This will
provide for residents to stay and move to other care if needed. Mr. Mininger said he has no negative gut reactions. Mr.
Haberle said if you propose dwelling units and the other improvements fit, he doesn’t think this is outside of what fits on
the site. Mr. Mininger asked how this use will compare with the public using this road. Mr. Gundlach replied there will be
less employees and less deliveries which will be reflected in the study. Mr. Vey said in looking at proceeding it seems as
though a sketch plan make a lot of sense to offer more feedback. Mr. Gundlach said that was their thoughts as well, before
an amended Conditional Use Application is filed along with a Master Plan. Mr. Marty Smith said this will be captured in
the Eighth Revised Master Plan. Mr. Haberle stated sewer capacity and the timing, may be an issue and asked if the next
re-rate would create capacity. Mr. Marty Smith said they have allocation already. Mr. Mininger asked if it is close to what

1



is needed for this proposal. Mr. Marty Smith said about 1/3 and Mr. Gundlach added they will need more engineering and
to go through the process will take close to a year and half. DEP has been receptive to acknowledging that age restriction
uses do use less capacity and they have been approving at 100 gallons and less in the region. Conversations will be had
with the Authority and DEP to calculate the capacity that is needed the less that is needed will leave more for others. Mr.
Smith said the sewage was extended up to Delores Drive, same with the water. Mr. Vey stated the Act 537 Plan has been
amended and DEP came back with review comments. The Draft update is completed and there is capacity that is allocated
in the plan, which should be honed in on. If changes are needed to that addition, it would be good to not advertise and
submit and be off on the edu’s. Mr. Gundlach said when they make submission, they will do a sewer and report on what
allocation is needed. Mr. Vey stated they should discuss with the Sewer Authority to resolve the edu’s, this can go parallel
with a sketch plan submission to flush out the details. Mr. Gundlach said they will make this a priority. Mr. Vey asked if
there is a need for additional impervious surface. Mr. Gundlach replies they will run all the calculation. Mr. Marty Smith
stated he knew this revision would require an update to the Master Plan. There was discussion with the parking layout for
Alpas which brought the need for parking to the forefront, congregate care parking is needed. The layouts on those sections
met the minimum requirements. The plan will need to be revised to accomplish this change, and they will be looking at
impervious surface overall. Mr. Markward stated he did have a conversation with Mr. Vey about turning to move to 46%
coverage in the AMU. They have to ability to go to 45% but would ask to allow to go to 46%. They did not contemplate
Mill Hill Road going through the project and would like to remove the road from the calculations of impervious, maybe to
go to a sectionalized impervious surface coverage. Mr. Markward noted this would allow more acreage. Mr. Vey said you
have to go back to the definitions, net buildable and netting out roads which might be possible to get impervious through
definition and application. Mr. Markward stated Mr. Marty Smith has done the calculations and it will get them where they
need to go without zoning changes. Mr. Gundlach stated Section 665a.8 is the section that allows impervious to go to 45%
and they will get a report together. Mr. Markward said they will use BMP’s that are already present. The next round of the
Master Plan will have these changes in it. Mr. Vey stated taking a road through to Old Bethlehem Pike is huge and gives
more access to different points. There may be able to be a realign with Pumping Station Road. Mr. Marty Smith said they
will coordinate with the Township on the road alignment. Mr. Vey asked what the anticipated timing is on the sketch plan
submission. Mr. Markward asked if there is anything official needed on the impervious surface with a sketch plan. Mr. Vey
replied if there is a zoning change there is lead time on advertising. Mr. Markward said the goal is not to have to go
through a zoning change. Mr. Vey added a sketch plan will flush out big picture stuff. Mr. Markward asked if the township
goes to the Sewer Authority themselves to ask where they stand on the items as show in the revised Act 537 Plan. Mr. Vey
said they had a roundtable and with this revision is pretty much himself with bouncing off of Todd Baldwin and Devan
Ambron. Mr. Baldwin is in communication with the sewer end of the plan. What we are looking at now is the DEP review
letter and hitting every comment they made. Mr. Vey said he anticipates getting together with Harry Koenig from the
Sewer Authority for the implementation schedule. There is not a tremendous amount for on lot. Mr. Markward asked if
their Board is aware of what is being done, they have nothing to react to and they have offered to build. Mr. Vey replied we
are focused on DEP comments. Noone is being denied access to the plan. At this time Mr. Mininger asked for comments.
There were no comments received.

Correspondence:
Fire Police Assistance Request(s). Fire Police Assistance requests have been received from Sellersville Borough for the
Sellersville Gallery of the Arts scheduled to take place on Sunday, September 21, 2025 and from Perkasie Borough for the
Under the Stars Car Show scheduled to take place on Saturday, August 16, 2025.
Mr. Haberle made a MOTION, seconded by Mr. Haberle and passed unanimously, to approve the Fire Police
Assistance Requests received from Sellersville Borough for the Gallery of the Arts event and Perkasie Borough for the
Under the Stars Car Show event.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items: No public comment was received.

Adjournment: With there being no further discussion Mr. Haberle made MOTION to adjourn the August 13, 2025
Milford Township Board of Supervisors Special Meeting at 7:46 a.m. Mr. Mininger seconded the motion. The motion
passed unanimously.



